=l NORTH
LAKE TRHOE

Agenda and Meeting Notice

THE NORTH LAKE TAHOE RESORT ASSOCIATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Wednesday, October 5, 2011 - 8:30 am — 11 a.m.
Tahoe City Public Utility District

NLTRA Mission
“To promote tourism and benefit business through efforts that enhance the economic, environmental,
recreational and cuftural climate of the area.”

Meeting Ground Rules
Be Prepared, Engage in Active Listening, Be Respectful of Others, No Surprises, it is OK to Disagree,
Acknowledge Comments, but Do Not Repeat Comments

ITEMS MAY NOT BE HEARD IN THE ORDER THEY ARE LISTED

A. CALL TO ORDER - ESTABLISH QUORUM

B. AGENDA AMENDMENTS AND APPROVAL (Motion)
1. Agenda Additions and/or Deletions
2. Approval of Agenda

C. PUBLIC FORUM
Any person wishing to address the Board of Directors on items of interest to the Resort
Association not listed on the agenda may do so at this time. It is requested that comments be
limited to three minutes, since no action may be taken by the Board on items addressed under
Public Forum.

D. REPORTS & ACTION ITEMS

3. Contract with Placer County (Motion) - Sandy Evans Hall (10 minutes)
4. Tahoe City Golf Course (Motion) — Phil GilanFarr (15 minutes)
5. Regional Skier Shuttle Program (Motion) — Ron Treabess (15 minutes)

6. Supplemental Operating Procedures and Policies (Motion) - Sandy Evans Hall (10
minutes)

7. Election Committee Appointments (Motion) - Ron Mcintyre - 1 board member
minimum, 3-7 members total, 5 board positions open: At Large, Real Estate/Property
Management, Ski Area, Recreation, Small Lodging (10 minutes)

8. Special Events Grant Allocation Recommendation (Motion) — Kali Kopley (15
minutes)



9. Updates on the North Lake Tahoe Marketing Cooperative FY 2011/12 and the San
Diego Winter Ski Cooperative Plan — Les Pedersen, Marketing Committee Chair (15
minutes)

10. Conflict of Interest Policy — Review of board policy and legal opinion for clarification —
Ron Mclintyre/Brian Hanley - Porter Simon (20 minutes)

11. October 17, 6 — 8 p.m. Granlibakken — Joint Board Meeting with TCPUD and public
on West Commons (Firehouse) alternatives (5 minutes)

12. October 25, 6 p.m. North Tahoe Event Center — Town Hall Meeting on Community
Plan Update — Looking for board participation on zoning/design teams {5 minutes)

13. Barb Cohen resignation — Thank You for your service! (5 minutes)

E. CONSENT CALENDAR — MOTIONS (5 min)
All items listed under the consent calendar-motions are considered to be routine and/or have been or will
be reviewed by committee, and will be approved by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of
these items unless a Board member or siaff person requests a specific item be removed from the consent
calendar for separate consideration. Any item removed will be considered after the metion and vote to
approve the remainder of consent calendar-motions.

14. Board Meeting Minutes — September 7, 2011

15. Financial Statements — June 30, 2011

16. Financial Statements — July 31, 2011

All committee meeting briefs are provided for informational purposes only. Minutes are available at
www.nltra.org

17. Joint Infrastructure/Transportation Committee — September 26, 2011

18. Marketing Committee — September 27, 2011

19. Conference Sales Reports

20. Infrastructure/Transportation Activity Report — September 2011

21. Chamber of Commerce Committee — NO SEPTEMBER MEETING

22. September Chamber of Commerce Business Plan Progress Report — NO REPORT
23. Group Sales Director Sub Committee - NO SEPTEMBER MEETING

24. Lodging Committee — NO SEPTEMBER MEETING

25. Finance Committee — September 6, 2011

F. CHAMBER OF COMMERCE REPORTS (5 min)
26. Chamber Activities and Events — Annual Meeting October 27 at North Tahoe Event
Center

G. DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS — Economic Development, The Prosperity Center,
Legislative Action

H. MEETING REVIEW AND STAFF DIRECTION

. CLOSED SESSION (If necessary)
a. NLTRA Lease Options



At any time during the regular session, the Board of Directors may adjourn to closed session to
consider existing litigation, anticipated litigation, liability claims, personnel matters including
employee appointment, employment, performance evaluation, or discipline/dismissal/release, or
contract negotiation.

J. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION

K. ADJOURNMENT

This meeting site is wheelchair accessible. Posted and e-mailed , 2011



= NORTH
LAKE TAHOE

RESORT ASSOCIATION
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

October 5, 2011

To: Board of Directors
From: Sandy Evans Hall
Re: Placer County Agreement FY 11/12

Action Requested: Recommend Approval of agreement with Placer County for fiscal
year 2011-2012 in the amount of $5,430,703.

Issues: Changes to the contract and attachments from the last Board of Directors meeting
on September 7, 2011

e Page 3-6, 5-A: Transitional language regarding base-line county services being
currently funded by TOT, reflecting the short term nature of this funding.

e Page 3-7, B-4: Placer County will provide full accounting of Infrastructure
contract balances including interest.

e Page 3-8, B-6: $150,000 Infrastructure Account funds for maintenance needs can
be accessed with County CEO approval (not BOS approval).

e Page 3-8, C-1: Increased ceiling for marketing Personnel Overhead by $37,000 to
include staffing at RTIA.

e Page 3-30, Special Events: Comprehensive Special Events study is due March 1,
2012 to CEOQ, no formal consultant and costs are necessary.

e Page 3-30, Staff Development: A staff development plan and measureable staff
goals will be presented to CEO by March 1, 2012. All reference to use of TOT
for bonuses has been removed.

e Page 3-30, RTTA Welcome Center: Additional language was added to allow the
provision of courtesy information to the traveling public regardless of
jurisdictional boundaries.

e Page 3-30, North Lake Tahoe Express: An equity analysis to determine fair share
operational commitments will take place this fall, and full program budget
approved by Transportation, Board and CEO.

e Page 3-34, Attachment B: September payment of $273,379 has been added to
October payment of $513,025, both to be paid October 17, 2011. October and
January payments include a split payment of $479, 293 marketing portion of the
fund balance.

e Page 3-35, Attachment C: Increase in Personnel/Overhead Cap from $620,000 to
$657,000 to include the staff at RTIA of $37,000.

This agreement will be on the County BOS agenda October 11 for staff recommended
approval.

-



MEMORANDUM

- OFFICE OF THE
COUNTY EXECUTIVE
COUNTY OF PLAGER
TO: Honorable Board of Supervisors - SR
FROM: Thomas M. M:ller,CountyExecutweOfﬁcer .

Submitted by: fennifer Merchant, Principal Managément Analyst

DATE: October 11, 201 |

SUBJECT: North Lake Tahoe Resort Association Fiscal Year 2011-2012 agreement in the
amount of $5,430,703

Action Requested

Approve an agreement with the North Lake Tahoe Resort Association (NLTRA) in the amount
of $5,430,703 for Fiscal Year 2011-2012 to promote tourism and provide guidance to the
Board of Supervisors on infrastructure project expenditures.

Background
The NLTRA serves to help promote tourism and to provide guidance to the Board of

Supervisors in funding infrastructure projects to enhance the built environment in North Lake
Tahoe communities. The primary task of the NLTRA is to implement the 2004 North Lake
Tahoe Tourism and Community investment Master Plan (TCIMP), through marketing,
transportation and infrastructure development efforts. Each year the County negotiates an
agreement with the NLTRA for disbursement and expenditure of Transient Occupancy Tax
(TOT) dollars for these purposes.

In an effort to further strengthen elements of the NLTRA agreement and to maintain tourism
development and services while also balancing other refated Placer County Tahoe operational
needs, a number of changes to the contract and budget have occurred this year. These
changes, discussed in the following section, are reflected in the attached FY 2011-2012
Agreement Between the County of Placer and the North Lake Tahoe Resort Association and
nine attachments, including the Scope of Work (and Attachments Al, A2, and A4), Proposed
Payment Schedule, Tahoe TOT Budget, (Attachments B and C), as well as the Community
Marketing Program Grant Funding Criteria, Marketing Performance Review and Marketing
Reserve Policy Memorandum— Adopted by the NLTRA Board, February 2003, (Attachments
D, E and F), which accompany the agreement. The recommended agreement amount will fund
administrative costs, direct marketing, program research, visitor information and support
services (most significantly transit services} and various infrastructure projects.

Issues

As indicated earlier, the FY 2011-2012 Contract has been amended through negotiations to
reflect a comprehensive approach to tourism marketing and infrastructure development while
rnaintaining Placer County’s ability to provide base level services in light of ongoing fiscal
challenges.

3~



The Honorable Board of Supervisors

MNorth Lake Tahoe Resort Associaton Fiscéi Year ZOI I 20]2 contra
October 11, 201 | . :

Page 2

the afmount of $5,430.703

As with last year's agreement, the FY 20l ntmues a shn‘t of fundmg from
capital project allocation to maintain; base ' '
attainment of tourism marketing and sg
Tahoe are maintained at acceptable !eveEs Specsﬂcaiiy,ifor;FY 20! 1: 20! 2, $789 800 m Tahoe
area TOT funds collected will be allocated to raintain Tahoe-specific services, such as Tahoe
Health Clinics, TART bus service, a Sheriff's DeparCment POPs officer, beach facilities, and

visitor information at the Placer County letor _Co,uncni s C_ahforma Welcome Center-

This agreement also acknowledges the need to set: asxde reserve funds for maintenance of
tourisme-serying facilities. $150,000 will be encumbered in a Resort Association reserve account
to be allocated for fund “one-time” maintenance expenses, following recommendation to and
approval by the County Executive Office. - ‘

Another focus this fiscal year is ensuring fair share funding arrangements as regional tourist-
focused services, such as marketing, visitor information and transit are expanded and improved.

Capital projects scheduled for possible review and funding' consideration this year include
expanding or improving visitor information facilities, a performing arts facility, welcome lighting,
and the Squaw Valley Olympic Ski Museum.

Fiscal lmpact -

The annual NLTRA agreement is funded with a negotiated share of TOT revenues generated in
the North Tahoe TOT area. For Fiscal Year 201-2012, contract funding of $5,430,703 is
recommended. The contract final budget includes $2,796,640 for marketing, $1,160,200 for
visitor support services/transportation and $1,473,863 for capital improvements
(infrastructure).

Attachments:
NLTRA FY 2010-201 1 Contract and Attachments A-F

3-Z




Contract Number
Administering Agency: CEO

DESCRIPTION: AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE. COUNTY OF PLACER AND THE
NORTH LAKE TAHOE RESORT ASSOCIATION

THIS AGREEMENT MADE AND ENTERED !NTO TH!S I1th DAY OF
October, 2011 BY AND BETWEEN the County of Placer, hereinafter referred to as
“COUNTY” and the North Lake Tahoe Resoft Association, Inc., a California Nonprofit Public
Benefit Corporation, hereinafter referred to as “RESORT ASSOCIATION”.

WHEREAS, the 1995 North Lake Tahoe Tourism Development Master Plan
recommended the consolidation of the Tahoe North Visitors and Convention Bureau and the
North Lake Tahoe Chamber of Commerce into a Resort Association; and,

WHEREAS, the North Lake Tahoe Tourism Development Master Plan recommended a
Resort Association to oversee a full spectrum of tourism management functions, including
marketing and visitor services, and the development, planning, and implementation of
transportation and infrastructure projects; and,

WHEREAS, the COUNTY is desirous of obtaining certain services as recommended
by the North Lake Tahoe Tourism Development Master Plan (TCIMP), and its successor plan, the
North Lake Tahoe Tourism and Community Investment Master Plan, approved by the Placer County
Board of Supervisors on July 26, 2004; and

WHEREAS, the NORTH LAKE TAHOE RESORT ASSOCIATION, Inc., a California
Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation, has been organized under the Nonprofit Public Benefit
Corporation Law for public purposes, to promote, enhance, reinvigorate, coordinate, and
direct tourism for the economic betterment of the North Lake Tahoe, California region, and is
willing to perform certain services for the COUNTY to implement the North Lake Tuhoe
Tourism and Community Investment Master Plan, and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY recognizes and values the local input process provided by
the RESORT ASSOCIATION to maintain ongoing area-specific expertise and review of tourism
marketing and capital infrastructure and operational investments.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and
agreements herein contained, it is agreed by and between the parties hereto as follows:

I. SCOPE OF WORK

RESORT ASSOCIATION shall perform the Scope of Work as set forth in Attachment A,
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. Without restricting or otherwise
limiting the work to be performed as described in Attachment A and its attachments, it is
agreed the intent of this Agreement is that the RESORT ASSOCIATION shall, in performing
the worl, do the following: 1) provide a full spectrum of management activities for tourism
marketing and visitor services for the Placer County businesses of the North Lake Tzhoe
region (These services at times will include cooperative regional marketing efforts). Any
regional marketing efforts shall not result in a subsidy to participating external jurisdictions.);

1
3-2



2) undertake its activities to implement in full the North Lake Tahoe Tourism and Community
Investment Master Plan; and, 3) assist with the planning, development, and implementation of
necessary public infrastructure improvements in the Placer County portion of the North
Lake Tahoe region.

The Scope of Work may be amended only upon. wrlttean approval between the RESORT
ASSOCIATION and the County Executive Officer; provided, however, that no such
amendment shall increase the compensation paid hereunder without executlon of a written
amendment approved by the Board of Supemsors

2. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS OF THE ASSOCIATION

A. All board meetings of the RESORT ASSOCIATION shall be conducted in such a manner
as to afford and encourage public attendance and participation. An agenda shall be
prepared for each meeting of the board containing a brief general description of each
item of business to be discussed or transacted at the meeting. No later than three (3)
business days prior to the date of a meeting of the board, the agenda shall be posted at
the meeting place and at other appropriate locations in the North Lake Tahoe
community. The public shall be given an opportunity to attend each board meeting and
to directly address the Board on any item on the agenda and on the business of the
RESORT ASSOCIATION generally,

B. The RESORT ASSOCIATION need not discuss confidential matters involving litigation;
attorney-client privileged matters, or personnel issues in public session. The RESORT
ASSOCIATION shall make every effort to maximize public input into its decision-
making process.

C. To the extent monies received for projects and programs are expended by the RESORT
ASSOCIATION or by a third party under grant from the RESORT ASSQCIATION for
service and support in any amount greater than $25,000, the RESORT ASSOCIATION
shall utilize and require the third party to utilize a competitive bidding or procurement
process. This process will ensure that the work is awarded in an impartial manner to
the most responsive and best qualified contractor making certain that the projects and
programs are accomplished in a cost-effective manner. This provision is not applicable
to cooperative programs in which the RESORT ASSOCIATION is not a primary
partner. Primary partner is defined as funding a 40 percent or greater share of service
and support costs. This provision is also not applicable when service and support is
being provided by a non-profit public benefit corporation that does not compete with
other potential service providers. All service and support including initial pre-project
planning and feasibility phases in an amount greater than $10,000 must be accompanied
by a scope of work and contract which is reviewed and approved by the Board of
Directors. This includes funds granted for cumulative or phased projects and programs.
RESORT ASSOCIATION staff shali within 29 days notify and provide supporting
documentation in writing to the Board of Directors for unbudgeted project or program
expenses of $2,500 or greater.

D. This Agreement requires the RESORT ASSOCIATION to undertake a series of actions
by established deadlines during the term of this Agreement. The actions are described
and deadlines identified in a matrix which is Attachment A-1 to this Agreement,

2 3_(7[




3. TERM AND TIME OF COMPLETION

The term of this agreement is from July I 20E I through June 30, 2012, and may be
extended from year to year thereafter as prov;ded in Section 12. RESORT ASSOCIATION
agrees to complete all tasks and submit aiE reports and other duties as outlined within said
Scope of Work.

4. PROGRESS REPORTS

RESORT ASSOCIATION shall submit such progress reports and information as may be
requested by COUNTY, including, but not limited to, the following requirements:

A. The RESORT ASSOCIATION shall provide quarterly written reports to COUNTY
describing in general narrative form the work performed during that previous quarter
under each of the categories set forth in the Scope of Work, including a summary recap
of the budget expenditures for each such category as set forth in the Final Budget and
for projects and programs as defined in the Scope of Work, and Return on Investment
indicator data as outlined in the Marketing Performance Review document. The report
shall describe the need to revise the Scope of Work to achieve the desired program
objectives, if required, explain any unanticipated difficulties in achieving program
objectives, and propose amendments to this Agreement as may be necessary to achieve
the objectives of the parties. The RESORT ASSOCIATION shall provide a completed
quarterly report to the CEO Tahoe Office no later than 45 days following the last day of
each quarter. The COUNTY may request additional information regarding the activities
of the RESORT ASSOCIATION, which shall be provided within |5 business days.

B. No later than April 30, 2012, the RESORT ASSOCIATION shall submit a Scope of
Work and an accompanying budget request for the subsequent fiscal year, The request
shall include any suggestions for improvement of the Scope of Worlk and program
objectives, and identify the costs thereof, if any.

C. Prior to submittal to the COUNTY, the proposed budget and Scope of Work shall be
made available for public review and comment by the RESORT ASSOCIATION in public
forums at the Board of Directors and the following committee meetings: Chamber of
Commerce, Finance, Infrastructure, Marketing, and Transportation. All comments and
any response shall accompany the submittal to the COUNTY. Any RESORT
ASSOCIATION partners, both public and private, who could be impacted by funding
proposed to be included or excluded in the proposed budget will be notified in advance
of the review and comment process.

D. The RESORT ASSOCIATION shall have an annual audit of assets and liabilities
performed and shall provide the same to the COUNTY within thirty (30) days of its
completion. The COUNTY shall have the right to petform an audit of the financial
records of the RESORT ASSOCIATION at its own cost at any time to verify payments
and expenditures made under this Agreement. Upon request of the COUNTY, the
RESORT ASSOCIATION agrees to make its financial records available to the COUNTY
for any such review within a reasonable period of time.



5. COMPENSATION

A. MAXIMUM LIMIT

The RESORT ASSOCIATION'S total compensation is $5,430,703, as set forth in detail
on Attachment B (Payment Schedule), and Attachment C (RESORT ASSOCIATION
TOT Budget). The total compensation amount reflects the amount approved in the
Board of Supervisors Final Budget for the current fiscal year, and may also be subject to
further written amendment based upon any subsequent agreement and budget revisions
approved by the Board of Supervisors, Such budget revisions shall also be based on
approved percentage formulas and funding availability, including Transient Occupancy
Tax revenues and previous fiscal year fund balance, which may be adjusted, either
positively or negatively.

Due to ongoing uncertainty related to impacts from potential significant California State
budget shortfalls, half of the FY 201 1-2012 amount budgeted for Capital Projects in the
Infrastructure Fund budget shall be held in reserve for potential contribution to the
maintenance of essential COUNTY services in the North Lake Tahoe area, such as
transit and transportation operations. It is anticipated that such determination by the
COUNTY regarding funding needs would be made by mid-year. Prior to committing
such funds, if necessary, the COUNTY and RESORT ASSOCIATION will meet and
confer on any such contributions. Any FY 201 [-2012 Infrastructure Fund balance
allocated will be transferred to the Infrastructure Account held by the County Treasury.

Funding avallability of $3,759,840 is net after County Services, Infrastructure Account
allocation and base Tahoe Area Regional Transit services, as detailed in Attachment C,
RESORT ASSOCIATION TOT Budget. Funding for Public Safety shall occur via internal
journal transfer on a quarterly basis and only following RESORT ASSOCIATION and
County Executive Office review and approval of completed tasks provided by the Placer
County Sheriff's Department.

The maximum compensation amount shall represent full compensation for those
activities and tasks described in the “Scope of Work” set forth as Attachment A and A
I-4, and is subject to any amendments to this amount and to the Scope of Work. All
expenses of the RESORT ASSOCIATION, including any expert or professional
assistance, any travel or per diem costs, any administrative services, and any capital
expenditures necessary to complete the Scope of Worl will be paid only from the
money identified for each specific purpose, and within the limits set forth above.

‘COUNTY and RESORT ASSOCIATION agree that allocation of TOT revenue to
certain expenses contained within the COUNTY SERVICES portion of the Budget,
ATTACHMENT C, are the result of funding shortfalls that are not expected to be long-
# term. Both parties further agree to monitor non-TOT revenues for enhanced public
health and safety and to incrementally reduce allocation of TOT for these services as
availability of alternative revenue sources allows. It is also agreed that, to the extent
possible, COUNTY SERVICES funded with TOT revenue will align with the mission of
the RESORT ASSOCIATION and goals set forth for the organization by the COUNTY.

3L



B. INFRASTRUCTURE ACCOUNT

1) Maximum FY 2011-2012 TOT funding to be received by RESORT ASSOCIATION to
cover expenses for Personnel/Overhead shall not exceed $101,000 and General and
Administration TOT expenses shall not exceed $41,000.

2} Other than Overhead and Admihjs:trétiqh expenses noted above, action by the Board
~ of Supervisors is required for the experditure of infrastructure funds based on
recommendations of the NLTRA Infrastructure Committee to the Resort
Assaciation Board of Directors and approval of RESORT ASSOCIATION
recommendations by the Board of Supervisors. No infrastructure funds shall be
expended by RESORT ASSOCIATION until Board of Supervisors approval is
granted.

3) The Capital Improvement/Transportation Committee, formerly the separate
Infrastructure and Transportation committees, shall be reviewed and restructured by
June 30, 2012 following RESORT ASSOCIATION Board and County Executive
Office approval.

4) Al fund balance from the previous fiscal year and interest on funds earned in the
RESORT ASSOCIATION Infrastructure Account shall be applied back to the
Infrastructure Account, allocated only to Infrastructure projects and not applied to

other activity accounts. Expenditure of interest and fund balance in the

-%4‘ Infrastructure Account shall be in accordance with the approval process illustrated in

Section B. 2). Placer County will provide FY 2011-2012 year end infrastructure

contract balances including applicable interest to the Resort Association by October

1, 2012,

5) Expenditure of Research and Planning funds allocated to the infrastructure Account
does not require Board of Supervisors approval, but shall be limited to expenditure
on Research and Planning Activities that provide advance studies, concept or
preliminary planning, technical fact-finding or analysis, data collection, community
workshops, and public opinion surveys that lead toward the advancement of projects
eligible for funding from the Infrastructure Account as outlined in the TCIMP, and as
specified in the annual budget. A list of potential Research and Planning fund activities
being considered for FY 2011-2012 is included in the Scope of Wark, Attachment A-
2. All Legislative Advocacy activities shall be limited to those that are consistent with
Placer County plans and policies and will be executed only following notification of
and consultation with the County Executive Office. Up to $3,000 in funds will be set
aside for community education associated with placement of a question to consider
renewal of the existing Tahoe region TOT on ballot prior to October 2012.

6) As cited in Section 5. COMPENSATION, A. MAXIMUM LIMIT, half of the funds
allocated to the FY 2011-2012 Infrastructure Account shall be held in reserve for
potential contribution to the maintenance of essential COUNTY services in North
Lake Tahoe, such as transit and transportation operations. It is anticipated that such
determination by the COUNTY regarding funding needs would be made by mid-
year. Prior to committing such funds, if necessary, the COUNTY and RESORT
ASSOCIATION will meet and confer on any such contributions,

5

3-7



*

In ongoing recognition of the need for maintenance of tourist-serving Infrastructure projects
envisioned in the Tourism/Community Investment Master Plan, a maximum of $150,000 in
Infrastructure Account funds is available to assist in meeting certain maintenance needs. These
maintenance services will be funded through the creation of a maintenance reserve account.
The pracess for allocation of mamtenance funds will include Committee and Board
recommendation and Placer CEO approval, prior to expenditure.

C. MARKETING ACCOUNT -

f) Maximum FY 2010-2011 TOT expenses for Personnel/Overhead shall not exceed
$657,000 and General and Administration TOT expenses shall not exceed $262,000.

2) The Marketing Account shall maintain a total 15 percent reserve of the total
budgeted expenditures to provide for fluctuations in the Transient Occupancy Tax
collected. The RESORT ASSOCIATION'S policy document on marketing reserve
fund expenditure is included as Attachment F to this contract. If reserve funds are
expended as called for in Attachment F, the funds will be reimbursed to the reserve
account by the end of the following fiscal year.

3} In order to meet the Tourism and Community Investment Master Plan goal of
“conducting more direct marketing and sales in cooperation and coordination with
its member businesses and constituents,” and consistent with Attachment A, Scope
of Work, a Community Marketing program shall allocate $100,000 toward the
development of special projects and programs that promote visitation to
communities. Of that total, the Community Marketing program will set aside
$50,000 to be allocated only after consensus recommendation of the RESORT
ASSOCIATION’S Chamber Advisory Committee to the North Tahoe Business
Association, Tahoe City Downtown Association, West Shore Association, Northstar
Village Retailers Association and the Squaw Valley Business Association, based on
pre-determined criteria. Attachment D to this Agreement includes the criteria list, as
well as monitoring information required to determine ROl The recommendation
must then be approved by a majerity vote of the RESORT ASSOCIATION Board of
Directors. The remaining $50,000 balance will be distributed through a similarly-
approved Special Events mini-grant process, for which the North Lake Tahoe
Chamber of Commerce is an eligible applicant and reciplent. The Chamber Advisory
Committee will consist of one representative each from the North Tahoe Business
Association, Tahoe City Downtown Association, West Shore Association, Northstar
Village Retailers Association, Squaw Valley Business Association, the COUNTY, and
at a minimum, one representative from the RESORT ASSOCIATION/North Lake
Tahoe Chamber of Commerce. As part of its consideration for continuation of this
program, the RESORT ASSOCIATION shall codify this committee in its bylaws. Up
to $3,000 in funds will be set aside for community education associated with
placement of a question to consider renewal of the existing Tahoe region Transient
Occupancy Tax on ballot prior to October 2012,

4) As identified in the Tourism and Community Investment Master Plan, the RESORT
ASSOCIATION and Placer County Executive Office Staff have developed and
approved a mutually agreed upon set of Return on Investment indicators from the
expenditure of all dollars expended by NLTRA for direct marketing promotion. The
purpose of this requirement is to ascertain the effectiveness of the COUNTY'S

6

2-0



5)

6)

investment in direct marketing and promations services provided by the RESORT
ASSOCIATION. As recommended ‘in'the: Master Plan, the specific set of RO}
indicators developed shall use measurable’ ub;ectlves and tracking mechanisms, so
that RESORT ASSOCIATION marketmg program expenditures, as recommended in
the TCIMP, can be “measured, tracked, and évaluated based on ROL” The resultant
Marketing Performance Review: Document is’ mciuded as Attachment E to this
document. An ROI data and anaiys:s report w1E1 be provided to the Placer County
Executive Office based on specsﬁcatlons agreed toby the Placer County Execiitive
Office as part of the Biseasonal Marketing Coliatéral Reports. The summer report
(April- September) is due no later than 45 days following the last day of the first
quarter and the winter report (October- March) is due 45 days following the last day
of the third quarter, The reports shall be archived by the RESORT ASSOCIATION
in a format accessible if requested by the general public.

The RESORT ASSOCIATION shall work with the Placer County Visitors Council to
develop a Scope of Work assaciated with the allocation of $40,000 in Tahoe TOT
funds for the provision of visitor information and tourism development services on
behalf of the RESORT ASSOCIATION. It is anticipated that these actions will be
completed by January |, 2012

The RESORT ASSOCIATION has entered into a Cooperative Marketing Agreement
with the Incline Village Crystal Bay Visitors Bureau (IVCBVB), Consistent with the
terms of the North Lake Tahoe Marketing Cooperative Participation Agreement
between the RESORT ASSOCIATION and the IVCBVB, the following stipulations
are also made part of this Agreement between the RESORT ASSOCIATION and the
COUNTY.

a) No provision in the North Lake Tahoe Marketing Cooperative Participation
Agreement shall be interpreted as to supersede or conflict with any provision of
the current Agreement between the COUNTY and the RESORT
ASSOCIATION as approved by the RESORT ASSOCIATICN and the COUNTY.

b) The RESORT ASSOCIATION shall maintain and track a separate accounting of
its Marketing and Administrative Expenditures as contributed to the
Cooperative, along with an accounting of the combined Cooperative
expenditures. Any and all administrative costs expended by the RESORT
ASSOCIATION on behalf of the Cooperative and its partners shall be
reimbursed to the RESORT ASSOCIATION by fair share allocation following
review and approval by the COUNTY.

¢) The RESORT ASSOCIATION shall include Marketing Performance Indicators
based on the total annual expenditures of the North Lake Tahoe Marketing
Cooperative as part of the RESORT ASSOCIATION'S adopted Marketing
Performance Review Document, an updated copy of which shall be provided to
Placer County as part of the RESORT ASSOCIATION'S Year End Report to
Placer County.

d) Activities, including program oversight, and any decisions made by the
Cooperative Marketing Committee, as defined in Section 8 of the North Lake
Tahoe Marketing Cooperative Agreement, shall be consistent with the budget

7



resources and marketing direction approved by the RESORT ASSOCATION
Board of Directors, in accordance WIth its: approved Operating Procedures and
Policies document, :

D. VISITOR SUPPORT SERVICESITRANSPORTAT[ON ACCOUNT

I ) Maximum FY 2010-2011 TOT expenses for Personne%/Overhead shall not exceed
$95,200,000 and General and Admmlstratson TOT expenses shall not exceed
$36,500,000. o

2) Expenditure of Research and Planning funds allocated to the Visitor Support Services
Account shall be limited to expenditure on Research and Planning Activities that
provide advance studies, including plans, $pecifications and engineering, concept or
preliminary planning, technical fact-finding or analysis, data collection, community
workshops, and public opinion surveys that lead toward the advancement of projects
eligible for funding from the Visitor Support Services Account as outlined in the
TCIMP. A list of potential Research and Planning fund activities being considered for
FY 2010-201 1 is included in the Scope of Work, Attachment A2, All Legislative
Advacacy activities shall be limited to those that are consistent with Placer County
plans and policies and will be executed only following review and approval by the
County Executive Office.

3) Implementation of transit and transportation services and programs shal] be limited
to the list provided in the Scope of Work, Attachment A-4, Additions or changes to
the services provided require a Scope of Work amendment to be approved by the
Board of Supervisors.

4} Visitor Support Services/Transportation Account funds earmarked for services
provided or operated by the COUNTY will not be allocated to the RESORT
ASSOCIATION. Alfocation of Transportation funds for transit and transportation
services provided by the COUNTY shall be completed via an internal journal
transfer. The RESORT ASSOCIATION will be notified and will acknowledge such
notification before an internal journal transfer occurs,

5) The RESORT ASSOCIATION shall provide $100,000 to the County Public Works
Department to be used for enhanced snow removal services for COUNTY-
maintained arterial roads near the Squaw Valley, Alpine Meadows, and Northstar ski
resorts. The funds will be transferred via journal entry following written request
from DPW and review and approval by the RESORT ASSOCIATION and County
Executive Office.

E. PAYMENT SCHEDULE

|) Payments shall be made to the RESORT ASSOCIATION as set forth in Attachment
B, entitled “Payment Schedule” for the term of this Agreement, predicated on the
ongoing fulfillment of the terms of this Agreement, and based upon the receipt of
progress reports as outlined in Section 4. The Payment Schedule for FY 2011-2012
will begin on October 1, 2011 or upon execution of this agreement. The Payment
Schedule may be amended with the written approval of the County Executive
Officer or his designee. Such amendment may include advance funding for

8

3-10



administration, marketing, and transportatton as mutually agreed upon by the
parties; however, in no event shall such améndments create any additional liability to
COUNTY, or additional compensation to RESORT ASSOCIATION without
approval of the Board of Supervisors (.e..any advance would be comprised of funds
included within the NLTRA/PEacer County budget and overall agreement amount),

2) Apportionment to the !nfrastructure Account held by the COUNTY will occur at
© such time as the Placer County Board of S' i ervssors approves of the RESORT

ASSOCIATION recommended mfrastructure projects. Distribution of funds to the
RESORT ASSOCIATION for Infrastructuie projects shalt occur once per quarter
based on anticipated project expenditures, and only after receipt and acceptance of a
statement inclusive of previous project invoices, expenditures and balances in a
format agreed to by the COUNTY. The RESORT ASSOCATION shall not carry an
Infrastructure Account balance that exceeds the amount allocated in the quarterly
payment by more than $250,000. If funds in addition to those anticipated in the
quarterly allocation request are required, an additional request for funds may be
submitted to the COUNTY for review and approval. Distribution to the RESORT
ASSOCIATION shall be consistent with project progress as mutually agreed upon.
Payments for new infrastructure projects recommended by the RESORT
ASSOCIATION and approved by the Board of Supervisors shall first be funded with
any existing TOT funds held by the RESORT ASSOCIATION prior to additional
payments to the RESORT ASSOCIATION from the Infrastructure Fund account
retained by the COUNTY,

3) Allocation of funds for all services implemented directly by the COUNTY shall be
conducted via internal journal transfer following recommendation by the RESORT
ASSOCIATION Board of Directors and approval by the Board of Supervisors and
based on an annual agreement, journal transfers as described above will be
accompanied by electronic and written notice to the RESORT ASSOCIATION.

F. POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS

The RESORT ASSOCIATION shall not use any funds received under this Agreement for
political contributions of any type. The RESORT ASSOCIATION may use budgeted
funds received under this Agreement to obtain legislative advocacy services, so long as
those services are exclusively utilized in a manner consistent with the intent and purpose
of this Agreement and the duly adopted policies of the COUNTY regarding any issue for
which such services are obtained by the RESORT ASSOCIATION. Such efforts may
include advocacy for state and federal funding to implement identified infrastructure
projects, transit operations, and/or other legislative efforts consistent with the intent
and purpose of this agreement that are allowable with respect to expenditure of public
funds.

In the event that the RESORT ASSOCIATION engages in any other expenditures for
legislative advocacy or political purposes utilizing its own funds, the RESORT
ASSOCIATION shall certify upon the request of the COUNTY that all such
expenditures are from funds other than those provided by this Agreement.

The RESORT ASSOCIATION shall coordinate its legislative and other advocacy and
policy recommendations on issues of local or regional importance with the COUNTY.

9

3



To facilitate such coordination, the RESORT ASSOCIAT!ON shall pmwde and maintain
a list of its empic’yeesk Board members, and contract: employees, who are, in the course
of their employment, represented on logal’ and reglonal bodies. Given the funding
relationship of Placer COUNTY and RESORT ASSOCIATION and the need to
represent both organizations’ interests in-a coordmated manner, the COUNTY of Placer
Executive Officer shall be responsible to.ensure said representation Is not in conflict
with County goals and objectwes and that- collectwe interests of the COUNTY and the
RESORT ASSOCIATION are represented, In the avent of the CEOfi inding sucha "
conflict occurs, the CEQ shali bring said conflict to the attention of the Executive
Committee of the RESORT ASSOCIATION for resolution. Should said conflict not be
resolved through such communication, the RESORT ASSOCIATION shall remove said
representative at the request of the CEQ. '

G. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PROGRESS PAYMENTS

1) COUNTY, in its sole discretion, may withhold part or all of monthly payments, if the
RESORT ASSOCIATION:

a) Does not comply with the requirements set forth in this Agreement; or,

b) Does not adhere to the Scope of Work, detailed work plans and key milestones
for measuring progress; or,

¢) Fails to take prompt and effective corrective action to remedy material variances
from the Scope of Work, detailed work plans and key milestones for measuring
progress.

2) Payments shall not be withheld unless and untit COUNTY:

a) Provides RESORT ASSOCIATION a written notice of intent to withhold
payment; and,

b) Allows RESORT ASSOCIATION fifteen (I5) calendar days to respond and/or
take corrective action(s). ‘

6. RECORDS

A. RESORT ASSOCIATION shall maintain at all times separate, complete, detailed records
of the funds with regard to work performed under this Agreement in a form acceptable
to COUNTY, according to generally accepted accounting and internal control principles.
COUNTY shall have the right to inspect such records, including Board and Committee
meeting agendas and minutes, at any reasonable time. Notwithstanding any other terms
of this Agreement, no payments shall be made to RESORT ASSOCIATION until
COUNTY is satisfied that work of such value has been rendered pursuant to this
Agreement. Payments shall not be withheld unless and until COUNTY:

a) Provides RESORT ASSOCIATION a written notice of intent to withhold payment;
and

10

3-1z



b) Allows RESORT ASSOCIATION fifteen (15) calendar days to
respond and/or take ,corrective act_ioh(s).

B. Records, progress reports, work papers, written or graphic material developed by
RESORT ASSOCIATION in connection with its performance of services hereunder shall

be, and shall remain after termination of thrs Agreement, the property of RESORT
ASSOCIATION

7. EMPLOYEES OF RESORT ASSOCEATION

All persons performing services for RESORT ASSOCIATION shall be independent
contractors, or employees of RESORT ASSOCIATION and not employees of COUNTY.
RESORT ASSOCIATION shall be solely responsible for the compensation of independent
contractors and for the salaries and other applicable benefits, including Workers'
Compensation, of all RESORT ASSOCIATION employees.

8. PERFORMANCE

The RESORT ASSOCIATION agrees that the performance of work and services pursuant
to the requirements of this Agreement shall conform to high professional standards. Failure
to perform the aforementioned work and services, as determined by the COUNTY, could
lead to assessment of liquidated damages of up to three (3) percent of the net total
Agreement amount.

9. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

The RESORT ASSOCIATION hereby agrees to protect, defend, indemnify, and hold
COUNTY free and harmless from any and all losses, claims, liens, demands, and causes of
action of every kind and character, including, but not limited to, the amounts of judgments,
penalties, interest, court costs, legal fees, and all other expenses incurred by COUNTY
arising in favor of any party, including claims, liens, debts, personal injuries, death, or
damages to property (including employees or property of the COUNTY) and without
limitation by enumeration, alf other claims or demands of every character occurring or in
any way incident to, in connection with or arising directly or indirectly out of, the
Agreement. The RESORT ASSOCIATION agrees to investigate, handle, respond to,
provide defense for, and defend any such claims, demands, or suits at the sole expense of
RESORT ASSOCIATION, THE RESORT ASSOCIATION also agrees to bear all other
costs and expenses related thereto, even if the claim or claims alleged are groundless, false,
or fraudulent. This provision is not intended to create any cause of action in favor of any
third party against the RESORT ASSOCIATION or the COUNTY, or to enlarge in any way
the RESORT ASSOCIATION's liability, but is intended solely to provide for indemnification
of COUNTY from liability for damages or injuries to third persons or property arising from
RESORT ASSQCIATION's performance pursuant to this Agreement.

10. INSURANCE

RESORT ASSOCIATION shall file with COUNTY, concurrently herewith, a Certificate of
Insurance, in companies acceptable to COUNTY, with a Best's Rating of no less than A: VI
Showing.

11

313



A. WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER’S LIAB!LETY ZNSURANCE

Consistent with Section 7, above, The RESORT ASSOCIATION shall provnde Worker's

Compensation insurance as required by apphcable law or regulation. Employér’s liability

insurance shall match or exceed statutory. coverige for each accident for bodily injury by
accident, bodily injury by disease, and for each employee for bodtly injury by disease.

If there is an‘exposure of | m]ury to RESORT ASSOC!ATION s employees under the US.
Longshoremen’s and Harbor Workers Compensatlon Act; the Jones Act, or under laws,

regulations or statutes applicable to maritime’ empEoyees, coverage shall be included for
such injuries or claims,

Each Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with the following specific
fanguage:

Cancellation Notice - “This policy shall not be canceled or materially changed withaut
first giving thirty (30) days prior written notice to The County of Placer.”” RESORT
ASSOCIATION shall require all SUBCONTRACTORS to maintain adequate Workers’
Compensation insurance. Certificates of Workers’ Compensation shall be filed
forthwith with the County upon demand.

B. GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

I} Comprehensive General Liability or Commercial General Liability Insurance covering
all operations by or on behalf of RESORT ASSOCIATION, providing insurance for
bodily injury and property damage liability for the limits of liability indicated below
and including coverage for:

a) Contractual liability insuring the obligations assumed by the RESORT
ASSOCIATION in this Agreement.

2) One of the following forms is required:
a) Comprehensive General Liability;
b) Commercial General Liability (occurrence); or
¢} Commercial General Liability (claims made).
3) if RESORT ASSOCIATION carries a Comprehensive General Liability policy, the
limits of liability shall not be less than a Combined Single Limit for bodily injury,

property damage, and Personal Injury Liability of:

- One million dollars ($1,000,000) each occurrence
- Two million doltars ($2,000,000) aggregate

4) If RESORT ASSOCIATION carries a Comprehensive General Liability (Occurrence)
Policy:

a) The limits of liability shall be not less than:

. 314



-One million dollars {§1, 000 000) each occurr‘eﬂce (combined single Limit for
bodily injury and property damage)- -

-One million dollars {$1,000 ,000) for Froducts-CompIeted Operations

-Two million dollars’ ($2 000 000) General Aggregate

b} if the policy does not have an endorsement pr"owd;ng that the General Aggregate
Limit applies separately, or if defense costs are included in the aggregate limits,
“then the requnred aggregate hmlts shaEl be two mllhon ($2 000 .000).

C. SPECIAL CLAIMS MADE POLICY FORM PROVES?ONS:

RESORT ASSOCIATION shall not provide a Commercial General Liability (Claims

Made) policy without the express prior written consent of COUNTY, which consent, if
given, shall be subject to the following conditions:

1) The limits of liability shall not be less than:

- One million dollars ($1,000,000) each occurrence (Combined Single
Limit for bodily injury and property damage}

- One million dollars ($1,000,000) aggregate for Products Completed-
Operations

-Two million doliars ($2,000,000) General Aggregate

2) The insurance coverage provided by RESORT ASSOCIATION shall contain
language providing coverage up to six (6) months following the completion of this
Agreement in order to provide insurance coverage for the hold harmless
provisions herein if the policy is a claims made policy.

D. ENDORSEMENTS

Each Comprehensive or Commercial Liability policy shall be endorsed with
the following specific fanguage:

1) “The County of Placer, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers are to be
covered as insured for all liability arising out of the operations by or on behalf of
the named insured in the performance of this Agreement between the Resort
Association and the County of Placer.”

2) “The insurance provided by the RESORT ASSOCIATION, including any excess
liability or umbrella form coverage, is primary coverage to the County of Placer
with respect to any insurance or self-insurance programs mandated by the
County of Placer and no insurance held or owned by the County of Placer shall
be called upon to contribute to a loss.”

3) “This policy shall not be canceled or materially changed without first giving thirty
{(30) days written notice to the County of Placer.”

13

315



E. AUTOMOBILE L!ABILITY INSURANCE

Automobile Iiabillty msurance covering bodiiy m;ui'y and property damage in an

amount not less than one mlﬂlon doflars ($I 000 OOO) combined single limit for each
occurrence, - ‘ AR

i, CANCELLATION

This Agreement may be canceled by COUN (-or RESORT ASSOCIATEON upon the o
giving of ninety (90) days advance written ‘notlce - Such'’ notice shall be personally served
or given by registered or certified United States Mall ‘In the event of cancellation by
COUNTY or RESORT ASSOCIATION, RESORT ASSQOCIATION shall be paid for all
work performed and all reasonable expenses incurred to date of cancellation with any
remaining unexpended funds returned to COUNTY,

2. AMENDMENTS - ANNUAL EXTENSIONS

This Agreement may be amended in writing. It is contemplated by the parties that the
COUNTY will continue to contract for the services such as those set forth in the Scope
of Work to be performed for the benefit of the North Lake Tahoe area on an annual
basis, and that the RESORT ASSQCIATION will continue to be available, willing, and
capable of providing such services on an annual basis. In the event the parties are
agreeable to extending this Agreement, the Agreement may be extended by amending

Sections | and 5 to set forth a new Scope of Work and new compensation and payment
schedule for each succeeding year.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first
above written.

COUNTY OF PLACER, “COUNTY"”

By:
Robert Weygandt
Chairman, Board of Supervisors

Date:

NORTH LAKE TAHOE RESORT ASSOCIATION,
“RESORT ASSOCIATION”

By:
Ron Mclintyre, Chairman, Board of Directors
North Lake Tahoe Resort Association

Date:

14



 Approved 2 fo For

List of Attachmenits:
A- Scope of Work
A-1- Actions Matrix
A-2- Research & Planning Projects
A-4- Transportation Programs & Services
B- Payment Schedule
C- FY 2011-2012 Budget
D- Community and Special Events Marketing Program Eligibility Criteria
E- Marketing Performance Review Document
- Marketing Reserve Account Policy

15



Attachment A

North Lake Tahoe Resort Association
Scope of Work— FY 2011-2012

Background

On behalf of the members and businesses in the North Lake Tahoe area of Placer
County, the North Lake Tahoe Resort Association (NLLTRA) values its relationship and
partnership with Placer County. The NLTRA has a successful frack record of investing
the Transient Occupancy Tax funds (TOT) granted by the Board of Supervisors,
consistent with the recommendations of the North Lake Tahoe Tourism Development
Master Plan and the North Lake Tahoe Tourism and Community Investment Master
Plan (NLTRA Master Plans). These Master Plans were developed by the North Lake
Tahoe community, through the leadership of the NLTRA, and adopted by the Board of
Supervisars in 1995 and 2004. The marketing, infrastructure enhancements and
transportation improvements provide direct benefit to the economy and vitality of
businesses in this area.

Through its support of the NLTRA, and the Association's unigue and effective network
of partnerships, Placer County is able to significantly leverage these TOT funds to
achieve an even greater level of Return on Investment (ROI) in the vital areas of
marketing, transportation, and infrastructure. A continuation of this successful
investment strategy is essential as part of the efforts to keep North Lake Tahoe
competitive as a nationally and internationally known destination.

Purpose

The importance of tourism to the economic health of North Lake Tahoe and Placer
County has been documented in numerous studies conducted over many years, most
recently in the Placer County Travel Industry Assessment and Defailed Economic
Impact Estimates (2002-2008) report (Dean Runyan Associates, March 2009).
Accardingly, the adopted mission of the North Lake Tahoe Resort Association is to
“oromote fourism and benefif business through efforts that enhance the economic,
environmental, recreational and cultural climate of the area.” The NLTRA expertise,
services, and programs described in this Scope of Services are consistent with this
mission.

Based on the Placer County-NLTRA agreement, the services provided by the NLTRA
are summarized as follows: the NLLTRA shall, 1) provide a full spectrum of management
activities for tourism marketing and visitor services for the Placer County businesses of
the North Lake Tahoe region; 2) undertake activities to implement in full the NLTRA

2-18



Master Plans; and, 3) assist with the planning, development and implementation of
necessary public infrastructure improvements that benefit the fourism-based economy
in the Placer County portion of the North Lake Tahoe region.

The NLTRA shall implement this Scope of Services through the following functions and
expertise: S o

Tourism Division

Marketing, Advertising and Promotions, Group & Conference Sales, Leisure
Sales, Special Events, Public Relations, Media Relations, Web Site, Social Media,
and Visitor Information Services

The mission of the Tourism Division is to “promote North Lake Tahoe as a travel
destination with the purpose of increasing travel spending within the region, including
year-round occupancy and length of stay, generating additional Transient Occupancy
Tax (TOT) revenues, sales tax revenues and maximizing the exposure and promotion of
North Lake Tahoe on a regional, national, and international level.”

The NLTRA Tourism Division will conduct a series of meetings designed to solicit input
from marketing professionals and partners, and members of the community, for the
purpose of updating North Lake Tahoe’s marketing strategies, plans and programs.
This effort will also include an in-depth review of our current North Lake Tahoe brand
platform. This brand review will include commitiee and board workshaops, customer pre
and post research, and community stakeholder interviews. The NLTRA has an adopted
Marketing Performance Reporting Document which guides the fracking and reporting
on Marketing “Return on Investment” {ROl) Indicators. The review of performance
helps guide the development of each subsequent marketing plan.

Key Performance Objectives

« Increase marketing ROl performance, including total paid clicks to the Web site; total
unigue visitors to the Web site and percent of lodging referrals to total visits.

« Track cost per visitor to the Web site.

« Increase the number of Web site clicks to lodging properties.

« Continue fo engage in communications with markeling partners, including lodging
and attraction suppliers and co-op pariners; conduct at least one annual “member
and partners” workshop to review marketing strategies, investments and
performance indicators and solicit feedback and input.

The following is a summary of the focus and acfivities of each department and function
within the Tourism Division and Key Performance Objectives for each:

Group/Conference Marketing and Sales

The purpose of this function and program is to increase the number of meetings held
each year at North Lake Tahoe and to increase awareness of the region as a premier
destination to the national and regional meetings industry. Specifically, the department
works to develop group and conference business and pravides referral and conversion
services. lts efforts are focused in partnership with those properties, large and small,

319



with the ability to book and serve group and c:onference business and who are members
of the NLTRA Conference Program. - Department programs consist of an integrated
media and marketing plan, trade show schedule, -sales missions and familiarization
tours (FAMS) and client relations.  The Conference Sales program will go through a
thorough review in this upcommg year.  The.intent of this review is to determine the
overall effectiveness of the program, to. implement new initiatives and strategles
determine If sufficient resources are aliocated to this effort, and to grow our conference
sales business. An additional sales person will be added to the staff per the
recommendation from the Conference Sales Commitiee and approved by the NLTRA
Board of Directors in order to meet Conference Sales goals. This process will include
various NLTRA committees including the Conference Sales Committee, the Marketing

Committee, Lodging Committee, Wedding Task Force and the NLTRA Board of
Directors. _

Key Performance Objectives

« The Conference Sales program will continue the work necessary to further establish
Placer County and North Lake Tahoe in the regional and national meetings market,
with the goal of increasing TOT and other revenues associated with group and
meetings business.

« Continue to improve competitive position, ease of navigation, and quality of content
on the NLTRA’'s Web site, from the Conference Marketing and Sales program
perspective.

« Increase group and conference lead generation from the Web site.

+ Increase total leads and total booked revenue.

Leisure Marketing and Sales

The purpose of this function and program is to increase vacation and leisure travel to
North Lake Tahoe. This effort focuses on building regional, national and international
tourism business for North Lake Tahoe through a variety of trade shows, familiarization
tours, promotional programs, training for travel and reservation agents, and media and
public relations. The department targets three distribution channels for the sale of North
Lake Tahoe vacations and vacation products: 1) direct to consumer; 2) travel agents;
and, 3) tour operators.

The department serves as NLTRA's primary liaison with the cooperative tourism
marketing programs available at the state level, in partnership with the California Travel
and Tourism Commission (CTTC), an industry advocacy and ccoperative marketing
organization. These cooperative marketing programs include contracted General Sales
Agents (GSAs) in targeted countries. Leisure Sales also coordinates the marketing and
sales of the NLTRA’s popular Ski Tahoe North multi-resort interchangeable lift ticket
(STN).

Key Performance Objectives

« Host at least two trade FAMs per year, one with a summer focus and one with a
winter focus; continue working with the NLTRA's Public Relations team and GSAs to
host multiple media FAM trips during the year.

3 3-20



« Increase the number of Leisure Sales s:te mspectlons and sales missions promaoting
North Lake Tahoe.

« Increase North Lake Tahoe product placement in the wholesale and tour operator
sales channels.

« Increase awareness and saies of the Skl Tahoe North Interchangeable Lift Ticket
(STN)

« Increase awareness and ﬂdershfp on the North l_ake Tahoe Express airport service.

Special Events, Projects and Promo_tlons

The primary purpose of this department is to support the development, implementation
and promotion of special events through available grant funding programs and event
support services, The NLTRA Special Events Department will work with a newly
structured Special Event Grant Allecation Task Force, made up of 2 Marketing
Committee members, 2 Chamber Advisory Committee members, 1 Lodging Comimittee
member and 1 NLTRA Board of Directors member, in the facilitation of the Chamber
Special Event Grant Program. Special Event staff meets one-on-one with all grantees
to describe special events services and support available through the NLTRA. Special
Event staff continues to support the Tourism Division's new event development effort
and the Community Marketing Grant Program administered by the North Lake Tahoe
Chamber of Commerce Advisory Committee. Promotional responsibilities of the
department include coordinating special events with the www.GoTahoeNorth.com Web
site, www_Northl_akeTahoeChamber.com, and other internet marketing channels.

Key Performance Objectives

« Fully integrate department expertise with community and resort sponsored and/or
produced events.

« Continue to make available the Special Events Resource Guide for event
producers and promoters that includes a description of the special events services
and support available through the NLTRA.

» Provide technical support and assistance to grantees of the Community Marketing
Grant Program, as requested.

« Assist area special events producers in the completion of final event reports, as
required, tracking specific measurements to determine ROl of each event.

«  Work to develop or recruit a major special event with national and international
television coverage, preferably in one of our initiative areas or during one of our
strike zones.

« Develop special events plan that analyzes existing events and event management
structures and identifies future growth opportunities in all evenis markets to improve
coordination with business association and other event producers, return on
investment and consistency with Resort Association goals.

Autumn Food and Wine Key Performance Objectives

Develop additional parinerships and events designed to expand the appeal and success
of the Lake Tahoe Autumn Food & Wine Festival.  In addition, specific measurable
metrics have been incorporated to determine the effectiveness of this and other NLTRA

32



support special event efforts. These metrlcs Include the trackmg and analysis of the
following:
Total Event Attendance (by locai reglonal and national)

Total Ticket Sales - - ,
Total Event Revenue -
Total Web Site Visits - -
Total Web Impressions
Total Web Site Referrals
Total Public Relations Advertising Equivalency
Percent of Positive-Media Coverage
Total Rooms Booked (where availabis)
0.  Total Economic impact

* An Annual Report will be presented to Placer County B.O.S and staff in

October regarding event strategy and funding.

SLPRNOD RN =

Web Site Strategies and Key Performance Objectives

As the main fulfiliment channel for all marketing efforts, the GoTahoeNorth.com Web
site must be fully leveraged to maximize the promotion of the entire North Lake Tahoe
area, while delivering compelling consumer content. To that end, a significant effort
was undertaken in FY 2010/11 to review and enhance the functionality and use of this
important asset. Through this process, a completely revised consumer website was
taunched in the Fall of 2010. Additional refinements in content, navigation, and referral
oppertunities will continue in FY 2011/12.

Various Key Performance Objectives will be tracked and analyzed throughout this

process to determine success of this Web Strategies effort. {See also Attachment G-

Strategic Goals and 2011/2012 Action Plan) :
These include:

Total Unique Visitors

Cost Per Visitor

Percent of Direct and Bookmarked Visitors

Number of Repeat Visitors

Number of Lodging Referrals

l.odging Referrals as a Percent of Total Unique Visitors

Search Engine Referrals

Organic Search Engine Results

XN AN =

Public and Media Relations

This program focuses on effotts to increase public and media awareness of North Lake
Tahoe as a premier year-round travel destination, to generate additional editorial
coverage in national and regional publications and communication channels, and to
help expand the reach of NLTRA marketing and advertising campaigns. Press kits are
assembled on CD and distributed twice a year - winter and summer. Various media
familiarization trips are organized and supported throughout the year, and assistance is
provided to writers on assignment. The Public Relations team also: 1) helps support the

3-27



Media Center on www.GoTahoeNorth.com to make it mare useful to members of the
media on assignment and/or those researching information about North Lake Tahoe; 2)
provides input and support to the NLTRA’s Video News Release (VNR) Program, and
various other electronic media efforts, to ensure a consistent and accurate depiction of
North Lake Tahoe; and, 3) helps ‘provide information regarding the NLTRA and its
programs in the local community and surrounding region,

Key Performance Objectives

« Increase the Advertising Eq urvalency of public relations efforts.

« Increase reference to, and the exposure of, the www.GoTahoeNorth.com Web site
in editorial stories and features about North Lake Tahoe.

» Increase the number of media contacts and press releases downloaded from the
GoTahoeNorth.com Web site.

Visitor Information Services

The purpose of the NLTRA's visitor information function is to provide high quality,
comprehensive and convenient information services to area visitors. This information,
and the way in which it is presented, is intended to enhance the North Lake Tahoe
experience as will be measured by Net Promoter Scores through visitor intercept
research, and encourage longer stays and/or return visitation. The NLTRA employs
knowledgeable staff and conducts training as necessary for new or seasonal staff. It is
the goal of the NLTRA to continuously improve the quality of its visitor information
services and expand the network of opportunities to provide such information. New this
year will be a Visitor Information Director that will be assessing physical visitor center
needs, visitor information products and distribution, moebile applications for in-market
use, and relationships with lodging providers for product delivery.

The Tahoe City Visitor Information Center (open year-round) also provides referral
services for NLTRA/North Lake Tahoe Chamber of Commerce member businesses and
gives members an opportunity to display their collateral. The Center serves as a “front
counter” for Chamber membership services and provides a variety of public services,
such as the sale of tickets for a variety of area special events. During the peak summer
season, the NLTRA operates a Visitor Information facility in Kings Beach, located at
North Tahoe Beach, near the intersection of highways 28 and 267, on property owned
by the California Tahoe Conservancy. The NLTRA will also continue to provide support
to the Placer County Visitor Coungil's California Welcome Center in Auburn. This Center
dedicates exhibit space and information services to promote North Lake Tahoe. New
this year is a lease with the Reno-Tahoe International Airport for a space that will
provide a Welcome Center for North Lake Tahoe as well as greater exposure and
location for the North Lake Tahoe Express service with a goal of increasing ridership
and reducing subsidy.

Key Performance indicators

« Track the number of visitors served (walk-ins, email inquires, and telephone
contacts) at the year-round and seasonal Visitor Information Centers; increase the
number of visitors served using appropriate sfrategies as may be available.

3-2%



«  Work with the NLTRA Infrastructure Deveiopment program to expand the visitor
information facilities serving North Lake Tahoe, - .-
» Track Net Promoter Scores with seasonal vmttor intercept research
« Assess opportunities for additional exposure and resource availability through other
~gateways such as Sacrameﬂto alrpcrt and Cahfomfa Wefcome Center in Truckee.

Community Marketmg Program ' '

The purpose of the Community Marketing Program is to help coordinate with and
support the efforts of the Chamber/NLTRA's community marketing partners, including,
but not limited to improving the marketing and promotion of specific geographic areas
within the region through the Resorts and Towns of North Lake Tahoe component of
the NLTRA's marketing efforts. Program goals include promoting community economic
vitality and hospitality and helping to fund community marketing collateral and related
projects, as identified in the NLTRA's adopted Community Marketing Program Grant
Funding Criteria. The funding criteria are included in Attachment D.  An important
focus of the Community Marketing Program is to provide funds to local business
associations to assist with marketing collateral and/or events that increase the vitality of
the various commercial core areas. Consistent with the Placer County/NLTRA
agreement, the Community Marketing Program is administered by the North Lake
Tahoe Chamber of Commerce Advisory Committee, with the final approval of all grant
recommendations by the NLTRA Board of Directors.

Key Performance Objectives

« Improve the quality and distribution of “in market” visitor information and achieve
greater coordination of advertising and promotional messages with those of the
NLTRA in drive and destination markets.

Support for Other Marketing Programs

Annually, by agreement with specific entities, the NLTRA provides financial and
technical support as a partner in several regional cooperative marketing programs.
These include the North Lake Tahoe Marketing Cooperative, Sierra Ski Marketing
Council, Regional Marketing Committee, Placer-Lake Tahoe Fiim Office, North Tahoe
Events Center, and the Placer County Visitor Council's California Welcoming Center.

Visitor Support Services (Transportation) and Infrastructure
Development

The mission of the Visitor Support Services and Infrastructure Development is
consistent with the NLTRA Master Plans to Improve Visitor and Community
infrastructure Facilities & Transportation Services for the Benefit of North Lake Tahoe's
Tourism-based Economy’.

In the spring of 2011, the NLTRA completed and adopted the annual update of its
integrated Infrastructure and Transportatzon Work Plan and Long Range Funding
Pian. The Integrated Work Plan is an “action plan” for FY-2011/12 that includes project
priorities, descriptions, lead agencies and identifies project partners. It also estimates
funding requirements, suggests time frames for project completion, and quantifies

3-24



“flexible funding” requests for transit. pro;ects The Long Range Funding Plan is
updated as a tool to assist in. budgeﬂng, evaluatmg additional projects that may be
proposed, and establishing long-term investment pﬂormes The Long Range Funding
Plan adopted this year is forthe period 2011 2016

Visitor Support Services (Transportatlon)

The Visitor Support Services allocation provudes fundmg for the NLTRA’s Contrtbutlons
to the operation of Placer County’s Tahoe Area Regional Transit (TART) system and
other visitor serving transit and transportation -services in eastern Placer County.
NLTRA funds are typically targeted to provide additional or enhanced fransit services in
the area, including service added during peak periods. A comprehensive list of services
expected to be provided this year is included as Attachment A-4.

For FY-2011/12, funding for additional and enhanced services is being provided, along
with funding to assist TART in maintaining its “base level services.”

Transit services provided by operators other than TART to which NLTRA funds are
contributed include the North Lake Tahoe Express Airport Shuttle (NLTE), the winter
and a portion of the summer Nighirider services, and the winter ski shuttle to Sugar
Bowl/Donner Summil. Both the Express and Nightrider are operated under contract
with the Tahoe Transportation District.

Visitor Support Services also funds annual peak season traffic management programs.
Currently, the NLTRA funds the "Tahoe City Three Lane Program” and a program in
partnership with the Town of Truckee at the junction of Hwy. 89 and West River Street
in the winter. In summer, funding is provided for traffic management in downtown
Tahoe City each Thursday morning (to assist the flow of traffic in and out of the Tahoe
City Farmer's Market on Commons Beach), and traffic management efforts in downtown
Kings Beach on busy Saturdays. Other possible traffic management times will continue
10 be reviewed.

Key Performance Objectives

« NLTRA ftransit service investments continue to result in increased passengers per
vehicle service hour for the systems funded all or in part by the NLTRA.

» Improve North Lake Tahoe Express monitoring and reporting documents consistent
with March 2010 NLTE Business Pian Review recommendations.

« Improve exposure of the North Lake Tahoe Express to the arriving visitor at the
Reno Tahoe International Airport.

infrastructure Development

Consistent with the direction and goals of the adopted NLTRA Master Plans, and the
projects specifically listed in the adopted FY-2011/12 Infegrated Infrastructure and
Transportation Work Plan, this department will continue to initiate, participate as a
partner, and monitor and report on the status and progress of projects and programs
funded through the Infrastruciure Account.

375



In recognition of the need for mainténance of tourist-serving Infrastructure projects
envisioned in the NLTRA Master Plans, a the NLTRA will establish a reserve from
Infrastructure Account funds to assist in meeting certain maintenance needs. The
process for allocation of mamtenance funds will be consistent with other Infrastructure
Account funds which require appilcation committee review, and NLTRA Board of
Directors approval : :

Key Performance Objectives
« Achieve measurable progress in the implementation of infrastructure projects for
which funds have been budgeted in the FY-2011/12 Integrated Work Plan.

Research and Planning

Annually, the NLTRA engages in Research and Planning actlivities that provide advance
studies, concept or preliminary planning for projects or programs, technical fact-finding
or analysis, data collection, public opinion surveys, community workshops, andfor
partnership development that lead to the advancement of Infrastructure and
Transportation projects, or efforts to further implementation of the adopted NLTRA

Master Plans. More specific research and planning projects are listed in Attachment A-
2.

Resort Association Administration/Management Team

The NLTRA is established as a 501{(c)(6) community based California non-profit public
benefit corporation. The function of the NLTRA’s administration and management team
is to manage the corporation and the full spectrum of Resort Association services and
programs operated by the corporation. These include, but are not limited to: consumer
marketing and advertising, group/conference marketing and sales, leisure sales, special
events, projects and promotions, public and media relations, marketing research and
evaluation, visitor information services, visitor support services (fransportation}, and
infrastructure development. NLTRA administration is responsible for managing the
company’'s human resources, accounting and financial services, internal controls,
budgets and forecasts, cash flow analysis, capital planning, and the accurate reporting
required fo support all of the NLTRA's functions and responsibilities. The NLTRA
undergoes an annual review of its Financial Statements and an Independent Auditor's
Report is prepared by a Certified Public Accountant each year.

Other NLTRA Services and Activities

Preparation and Adoption of the TRPA Regional Plan Update for Lake Tahoe

The NLTRA continues its active involvement with efforts by the TRPA to complete work
on a Regional Plan Update and amendments to North Lake Tahoe's Community Plans.
This is a planning process with significant ramifications for the NLTRA/North Lake
Tahoe Chamber of Commerce membership and our many partners, including Placer
County.

3-2



Specific NLTRA/Chamber Reglonal Plan Update Activities

Key Performance Objectives ‘

« Continue efforts to ensure the TRPA Regional Plan Update will stimulate vital
business and community mvestments and avoid inflexible regulations and stifling
regulatory programs.

« Continue to work in cooperatlon wnth Placer County and other partners to support
redevelopment and workforce housing goals and projects for North Lake Tahoe
through the regional and local planning process.

Legislative Advocacy

Key Performance Objectives

« Work with County Executive Officer to insure that NLTRA legislative platform, as
needed, allocates expenditures and activities only to those consistent with Placer
County policies.

« Continue advocacy efforts to support additional federal and state funding for the
adopted Lake Tahoe Environmental improvement Program (EIP). Such efforts shall
include supporting the reauthorization of the federal Lake Tahoe Restoration Act
(LTRA) as well as EIP investments from the states of California and Nevada.

- Continuge advocacy efforts to support maintaining the new source of federal funds for
transportation project development at Lake Tahoe through the Tahoe Transportation
District.

« Continue advocacy efforts 1o support securing one or more new sources of federal
transit operating funds for Lake Tahoce.

Maintaining and Developing Partnerships

The NLTRA will continue to use staff time and resources to maintain, enhance and
develop new partnerships, so that NLTRA funds for infrastructure, transportation and
marketing projects and programs are leveraged with other funds to the maximum extent
possible. For infrastructure and transportation plannhing projects, this effort involves
working with a variety of local, regional, state, and federal agencies to help develop
funding and implement projects. For marketing projects and programs, the NLTRA's
Tourism Division works with a variety of local, regional, and state partners to develop
and deliver leveraged marketing investments and opportunities.

Partnerships with Placer County and Related Agencies

The NLTRA is commifted to continuously improving understanding, communications
and the productivity of its partnership with Placer County as it benefils the businesses
and economic vitality of the North Lake Tahoe region. These include work with the
Placer County Executive Office and the Board of Supervisors, Department of Public
Works and TART, Placer Gounty Office of Economic Development, Placer County
Redevelopment Agency, Planning, Public Information, Facilities Services, and Revenue
Services, along with the Placer-Lake Tahoe Film Office, Placer County Visitors Council,
PlacerArts, and the Placer County Transportation Planning Agency (FCTPA).

10

327



HEM

Annual Conflict of Interest Filing j

Quarterly Infrastructure Reports

= These, re. pre;ﬁared and delivered to the
| COUNTY no later than 45 days after the end

of each’ quarter This action is quarterly.

Placer County Lodging Property Web site
Promotion

1 RESORT ASSOCIATION will ensure that all

iodgmg properties in Placer County are listed
on the GoTahoeNorth.com Web site; if they
are not Chamber members, they have a

‘ I;stmg but no’ dH'ECt link. This action is

ongoing.

15% commission for conference sales outside
of Placer County

The NLTRA Board has established a
commission structure which charges 15% for
booked-leads for conference business outside
of jurisdictions which are members of the
North Lake Tahoe Marketing Cooperative
(Placer/Washoe). This action was taken by
the NLTRA on September 8, 2008 and is
ongoing.

Washoe County Conference Marketing and
Booking Program

The RESORT ASSOCIATION shall not
provide Conference Sales and Marketing
services that, as deemed by the County
Executive Officer, unfairly subsidize business
development in a jurisdiction outside Placer
County. In order to ensure compliance the
Board shall approve a methodology agreed to
by Placer County that determines equity and
resolves all inequitable occurrences annually.
If this action does not take place prior to
December 31, 2011, a penalty of up to
$99,000 may be imposed.

Quarterly Reports

These are prepared and filed by staff no later
than 45 days after the end of each quarter.
This action is quarterly.

Draft Scope of Work & Budget

i The NLLTRA is required to prepare and submit

its Draft Scope of Work and TOT Budget
Request for the subseauent fiscal year no later
than April 30. Staff ensures that this action is
timely each year. This action is annual.

Public/NLTRA Board and Commitiee Review
and Comment on proposed Draft Scope of
Work & Budget

The NLTRA is required to provide for public,
NLTRA Board and NLTRA Committee review
and comment on the proposed Draft Scope of
Work and Budget prior to submittal to Placer
County. This action is annual.

15% Marketing Account Reserve

The NLTRA is required to maintain a 15%
reserve of the total budgeted expenditures for

3.28



: f-marketmg 1o "prowde for fluctuations in the

coupancy Tax collected.” This
ciated with cleveiopment and

o ‘adoption of the annual NLTRA budget. Staff

this ac n ;s ttmely each year This

Marketing RO!| Reports .

”‘-"s requlred to prewde a Marketing

. o I ROF data’and ‘Analysis. Report as part of its.
| *Bi-Seasonal Marketing Collateral Reports.”

The summer April-September Report is due no
later than 45 days following the end of the first
quarter the winter October-March Report s
due no later than 45 days following the end of
the third quarter This action is bi-annual.

Implement Infrastructure Contract

In order. totrack progréss and completion of
tasks associated with projects and programs
implemented with TOT funds, the RESORT
ASSOCIATION will utilize a contract format for
all projects and programs allocated TOT
funds. The contract format shall include a
scope of work and progress payment
schedule. This action is ongoing.

Contract Audit Findings

As noted in the FY 2008-2009 Management
Audit completed by the Placer County Auditor,
the RESORT ASSQCIATION shall take the
following actions:

s Update its bylaws to reflect current
Board composition and committee
structure;

« Develop consistent financial reports
(including budget to actual
comparisons) in a format acceptable by
the County and provide to the County
on a quarterly basis;

« Implement policy changes that create
dollar amount limits for staff-approved
expenses and services procured
without a contract, and reduces the
existing dollar amount limit for services
procured through an RFP process;

+ Provide the County with copies of alil
services and associated contracis for
expenses of $50,000 or higher from FY
2008-2009, and $25,000 or higher from
FY 2010-2011 forward;

» Create an annual Board-approved
legisiative platform that allocates
expendilures and activities only to
those consistent with Placer County
policies, ag approved by the County
Executive Officer.

+ Provide the County Executive Office

3-29



n updated Infrastructure Project
ing Worksheet on a quarterly
- basis, and with each Infrastructure
~Flnd A[Iocation request.
; label all Infrastructure and
r Slupport Services/Transportation
balance as “designated equity” on
he face of the draft and audited
cial statements

2 These actionis are ongoing.

Community Survey/Education

Consistent with funding allocations prescribed
in the Research and Planning projects listing
(Attachment A2), the Resort Association will
continue advance community survey and
education tasks associated with placement of
a question to consider renewal of the existing
Tahoe region Transient Occupancy Tax on
hallot prior to Qctober 2012,

Special Events Study

The Marketing Department shall complete a
comprehensive study of current and future
special events/management. The study shall
take into account business association needs
and input, as well as other event producers,
and include analysis of diverse events that
meet Resort Association goals and policies.
This action shall be completed prior to March
4, 2012 in preparation for the upcoming fiscal
year and meet majority approval of the
Marketing Committee and Board of Direclions
and County Exscutive Office prior to
implementation.

Staff Development

Prior to implementation, NLTRA CEO will
submit for review and approval to County
Executive Office a staff development plan,
including measureable staff goals. This action
shall take place by March 1, 2012,

Reno-Tahoe International Airport Welcome
Center

The Reno Tahae International Airport
Welcome Center shall be for the exclusive
purposes of ticket sales and information for the
North Lake Tahoe Express airport shuttle,
pramoting tourism and related businesses in
eastern Placer County, and providing courtesy
information to the traveling public about the
Tahoe/Truckee/Reno area. This action shall
commence immediately and be ongoing.

North Lake Tahoe Express

Prior to award of a new service contract, an
analysis shall be developed fo determine fair
share operational commitments from
jurisdictions/businesses served. The analysis
will consider full operational expenses, create
a methodology for annual operational plans
and adjustments, as necessary, to ensure
equity among jurisdictions and/or businesses

3-30



- |'Association’

RN ie

rious NLTE routes, and result in -
‘approval of a full program budget by
ansportation Committee and Resort
oard, and concurrence by the

- |:County Execuive Office, This action shall be

y April1,2092. - ©

3-3]



AttachmentAz

RESEARCH AND PLANNING PROJECTS .

Visitor Support S"’,i"’_iﬁ'-’-‘s“f'. .

Legislative Advocacy *
s California-Houston Group

Advance Transportation Project Studies
PCTPA Participation
Tahoe Transpaortation District

Water Shuttle Facilities and Permit
Analysis

Data Collection for Transit and Transport
Regional Planning Studies Participation
Reproduction of Plan Documents

Community Surveys/Education ****

* Up to $6,000 VSS
** Up to $6,000 Infrastructure

¥ Up to $3,000 Infrastructure (for production and distribution of public information)

" iiégislklét'i‘vfe‘_}!\dvocacy *

e " California-Houston Group

Advénded Infrastructure Project Studies

Data Collection for Infrastructure Project
Water Shuttle Facilities and Permit
Analysis

Community Workshops Materials

Regional Planning Studies Participation
Reproduction of Plan Documents
Community Surveys/Education ***

¥k Up to $3,000 VSS (for production and distribution of public information)

4-37



008'G00°L

_00EBSYL §
008 ¥ov
005 'E66 3
205 b6 ¢
000001

005'62
000'sZ1
000'6¥
000°564
000'GL1
000'6L
000’08
DGO'S¥

000161 $

oooey 8
00061
000°0¢ $

JajuaD SWO0dIBAN YELY Jo Buipun) [eiued 1) 000 07 $ux
Aunoo Jeoed Ag pepihoid ssoinies,

|e30 1 juswebeuepaisuer]juoljeuodsuell 24025102
VIS BUISSEY 1 MY PUNDOH JBDA

sweifoiyg Justabeuely siyel | pisuel ] [2j0-gNng
sweiboid Jisued} e i-gng

{BUSIXY) [eADUISN MOUG paoUByUT

J{maN) 8aaeg JUBIN AUNOH 8UoYS JSOAA JBUUNG

(Bupsixa) (Buuds g 184) 20mieg Alnoy 68 Aemybiy punoy fesi
{Bunsixg) Buiusng feg [e1sAlD 0} JBJSULION - AUnoH Loz Aemubiy seuuing
(Bunsixzy) aoiaeg ysuert StUBIBIN JSIU

«(BURSIXT) 508G SNUS Hodily 20UE | 93BT YUON/OUDY

(Bunsixg) mog Jebngesxanil sfNyS NS JSJUAA peouByuZ

(Bugsix3) £9Z Aemybiy LYV L 018G NSUBLL JBIUIA PROUBYUS
(Bupeixz)

‘g AemubiH “1yY L ‘eoines psuel | seiojdwiz g JeniS JSIUIAA pBouBYUT
(Bunsixg) swmubin

‘A0 eoyel ‘yoreg sBuiy ‘AsieA MENDS 'B0IAISG HSUBL ] ASIi0) | JSUILLNG
sweiboug ysues j juoleucdsues)

swueibold uswabeuey dijjel | 810 [-qng
{Bunsig) JusweBeuR JilEl | JBWWNG
{Bunsixg) Juowabeuepy Stel ] JSIUAA
wowebeuely oyjed)

$92IAI9G puk swelbold uoneuodsued) pasoaddy Z10Z-11L0Z Ad

-V LNJINHOVLLV

0c-g

6L-d

5-d
0i-g
Li-8
£i-8
gi-8
vi-g

.4

g-d

£-d
28

3-32



FY 2011-2012 Pa

nent Schedule -

PAYMENT
NUMBER

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8.
9.
10
1
Totals

{1 (2)

PAYMENT
DUE DATE

Oct. 17, 2011
Nov. 1, 2011
Dec. 1, 2011
Jan. 1, 2012
Feb. 1, 2012
March 1, 2012
April 1, 2012
May 1, 2012
June 1, 2012
July 1, 2012
Aug. 1, 2012

PAYMENT

T0NLTRA
786,404
273,379
273,379
513,025
273,379
273,379
273,379
273,379
273,379
273,379
273,379

$3,759,840

PAYMENT
TO COUNTY

278,478
139,239
139,239
139,239
139,239
139,239
139,239
139,239
139,239
139,239
139,234

$1,670,863
(8) (4) (8}

(1Y FY 2011-2012 Final Budget includes a total of $5,430,703 for the NLTRA contract.

(2} Payment Schedule is predicated upon receipt of Transieni Occupancy Tax funds at the
budgeted level.

(3) Apportionment to Infrastructure Account held by Placer County unti such time as the Placer
County Board of Supervisors approves of NLTRA recommended infrastructure projects.

(4)

)

Distribution of funds for Infrastructure prejects shall occur once per quarter based on
anticipated project expenditures, and only after receipt and acceptance of a statement
inclusive of previous project invoices, expenditures and balances in a format agreed to
the County Executive Qffice. Distribution shall be consistent with project progress as
mutually agreed upon. Payments for new infrastructure projects shall first be funded with
any existing TOT funds held by the RESORT ASSOCIATION prior to additional payments

from the infrastructure fund.

Transit services provided by Placer Counly and funded with NLTRA TOT funds will be

allocated to and paid from the County Treasury through a journal transfer process.

3-3



%87 2OHNOS DIMIANNITYIOL  [%vs e SE0UR0S PNIANNG Yo
{oov'or} {Busniizi Apuniatios) L0y BMLENEYW OL E 1L
fegzvrs'sl vy LST'PILL {- Wy -spoliies peuen o000 (e GUODIEAA -5aDIMTS
~EGYIABE U} peansdde-Aiunos) 1DDY $3A OL XTI DRALGEE-ARINGS] 2/NINNSER Lty BUIDUN) Kajs EAUCS 0} WMSRISELU] o) Suipuny wer
088'199 smuppeg pENY LLOZ-0R0Z A (%o @ DoBRIEQ PUNE LLOZ-GIOZ A4 {%IP  26Z'BLY BB PURS |LOT"0 K0T Ad
EC ¥v1 TALOWMEL0H - TY.OLENS uid 9zLB0a X2 TRLOWTRLON - TYLOLENS way eZZveRe XYL TELOKMEL0K - TVLOLENS
TEANSREY XVL 3L 9L0H ENNSASH XYL HL0NMELOM TSNS T KV FALOR! 1310H

20L729 SITIAMIS ALNNGD TVI0L
ODEEES SIENUTS ALNROD 'ddnS -TYLCIANS

i BN SdOe feumas|ddng
oo0'arL SHURS do4E] -jRusIpiEdng

[AT% T STONETS ALNAOD FEVE Y WLOLENS
THPZI SelEsSHERuprY LOL RIS Y

oSSk SRy Yoeag -pabyy oraues -5I485 284
oue'ss TREW BEeE 3NdEDE
[:71:3-T3 FHEW 2orsE -ONSiN

SSIAVNRGDT ALNIEOD

K

ea2'zis SAAIAKES ALNNOD THLCL
[T EER $EONYES ALNNGD 'ddnE ~TY10L8RS
e 1HVI Aq pojesadn) SUTIAMDS TIFUREYL
i SAMUAYIAS ALNNOD 2CVE - IWLOLENS
F7Fa4) UONEASIPY Q). RS Y
on0'ST aaiEg yoreg -jngiad ey
289'65 upsEag ¥ERg feied BUBLS

SFIIAUSS AINDQD

ey STgrET

B bl

SIOAEAS ALNNOD SSVE - TVADLEAS
UoRbNeiupY 101 JUS %

SIS ALNNDS

FolT

RAT- LT

" 1ov1NOD 905V LNosTu - wLnLens

00401 ERILIAY MOUT - M Jo78ld

. £00°6¥ WesBold JUSLBEUL SLSEI) OB 05 " puny Buerien sibaag |epeds
: {ieaoaddy SoW Hn FupRs AWK0D]; DOS'TOV Kauhos Loy -sweibosg Jsury 001'08 pung Bugmpmy Ajuauiies
Carezit 7 imAsiddy sod Saiesy - Sldiiisacidiiy Edes, 00'Ley UBSEIG eI L HVE ~SWRIBoI YsuErL pog'ss Wt Aunos Javeld
! : ‘o walpanpaAsAMng AunISS
L Bovesl s2)3oed Buyag wspnn ranesay uucuu:mqﬁw 000's [rTeies TS SARITEA SRS FIBRHOD
o o [z wisniomly o 1852G): T T e dusuivpRy Ul meied; oYe'LES' S swiaBeldEuneuIny an

DOOZS Suyuueld % yoleason _ 00008 ) Bopilejg pur yoresson .
o0°i siseg el - 923 0 tos'ss 21503 1081k~ 42D e 006'Z97 51500 10a8PUI - dED Y4S
o00'10L SISEn ;oA ~d) PEALIOADASULCSIS 60Z'SE Spes ) « dun DRBLUBAQ/REUDSISY * 000'ise SIS0 190313 - B PLAISAQTRULOSIed

TIOVHINOGD NCALVIDOSSY 1H0S3Y

SAOVHLINGD NOILYIDOSEY LHOS3

TIOVHLINOD NCILVIDOSSY LHOSHS

2 LNAWHOYELY
135004 101 SOHVL EL02-110Z Ad




ATTACHME_NT;-- D
SPECIAL EVENT & COMMUNIT GRANT PROGRAMS

 RESRT ASSOCITION
CHRNEER OF COMMERCE

2011-12 Special Event Development Grant Program

Purpose:

The North Lake Tahoe Resort Assaciation, in collaboration with the North Lake Tahoe
Chamber of Commerce, has established the Community Marketing Grant Program. The
purpose of this program is to provide marketing and promotional support to special events
or projects and programs fargeted at visitors to the region that generate local and regional
business revenue; provide local and regional media exposure, and opportunities for public
relations.

Criteria for Eligibility
Spedcial Event grant funds are open o any community organization or business with an
event or program that meets the following criteria:
» Targeted at visitors to the region to generate local and business revenue. }
« Revenue and other benefits generated must accrue principally to areas within
Placer County since the funding for this grant program comes from Placer
County Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) I
» Opportunities for public relations and local and regional media exposure
CMP grants are designed to provide marketing and promotional support including, but not
limited to, the design, development and distribution of marketing collateral, promotiohal
efforts, and/or advertising efforts which help generate local and regional business revenue
(including Sales Tax and Transient Occupancy Tax).

Grant Eligible Grant Ineligible
»  (Geographic area advertising » Capital Investments
(TV, radio, print, Internet) + Salaries
«  Production and printing of promotional » Operational Overhead
materials (brochures, flyers, posters, etc.) » Vehicle expenses (Fuel, efc.})
« Production and printing of signage used » Food, Beverage, Entertainment
to direct and/or inform visitors. & Transportation
e Marketing and promotion in support » Supplies, Equipment, Telephone,
of special events which benefit more Security, Clean-up, Facility Rental

than one geographic area of the region,
or the region as a whole.

3-36



Rating form to help vou see 1f vo meet the cnteria for ehq;bllrtv

1} Does your event take place in Placer County? Yes =1 No 0 #

2) Does the event have potential to genera%e overmgh% iodg:ng tax? -
1-10 (1=none, 10=Very Strong ) #

3) Is this a first time event? Yes =1 No=0 #

4) Does your event have opportunities for local & regional media exposure?
Yes =1 No=0 #

5) When and where does your event ocour?
There is special consideration for events occurring during the slower times listed below
and especially during the listed “strike zones”

On the Lake #
Jant - Jun15=1
Aug 15-Dec15=1

Off the Lake #
May 1 - Dec 15=1

“Strike Zone” #
Jan4 -~ Jan13=2
May 15 ~Jun 156=2
Aug 156 - Oct16=2

6) Special Consideration for new key initiative recreation events. #
Does your event showcase one or more of the following?
Paddle sports, biking, hiking, Nordic skiing (one point for each)

if you have 8 points or more you may qualify TOTAL #



Grant Program Process and Deadlmes L
Grant deadlines apply within the fiscal year (Juiy 1 June 30).

+ Process

o Complete application by deadline. Please contact the Chamber to confirm
that the application has been received.

o All applications are reviewed by Chamber staff then reviewed by the Special
Events Grant Task Force for allocation recommendations. The grant
allocation recommendations must then be approved by the Board of
Directors of the North Lake Tahoe Resort Association, typically as a Consent
Calendar item on a regular Board agenda.

o You will be notified by Chamber Staff as to your application status after the
NLTRA Board has approved the funding.

o Once approved, the applicant sets a meeting with the NLTRA’s Special
Event Manager and Chamber Manager to review the events’ marketing plan
and discuss action plans.

o Grant funds will be paid upon receipt of the Event Final Report and will
reimburse itemized expenses and receipts for all appropriate expenses up to
the grant total. Some events may need some funds before the final event
report can be written. In these cases, the NLTRA/CC can pay vendors from
the granted funds. This will be reviewed on a case by case basis.

o Event Final Report is due to the North Lake Tahoe Chamber within 60 days
of the event.

Dates:

¢« Deadline : September 7, 2011
+ Presentations: September 14, 2011
« Approval: October 5, 2011

» Notification: October 6, 2011
Please send application and invoices to:
Kym Fabel

North L.ake Tahoe Chamber of Commerce
PO Box 884

Tahoe City, CA 96145
kym@puretahoenorth.com, fax: 530.581.1686

3-38



Dollar amounts fo be awarded: _
The majority of grant awards glven wﬂi bein th
more than $5,000 should be for a large-scale even
a large visitor audience. Unused or uncl imed funds
February 1, 2012. RS

,00 to $2 500 range Requests for
: nd/or | program targeted toward
_|il'be reallocated with a deadltne of

Grant Program Recipient Obhqatlons :
Recipients of the Special Events Development Grants must comply with the following:

1) Use of the North Lake Tahoe Resort Asspciatiqn / Chamber of Commerce logo,
indicating sponsorship and/or support on printed promotional materials, including
brochures, flyers, advertising, and on signage as appropriate.

2} The North L.ake Tahoe Chamber of Commerce and North Lake Tahoe Resort
Association shall be named as an additional insured if grant funds are to be used to help
support a special event. General liability and fiquor liability insurance limits must be at
least $1,000,000 for each occurrence, damage to rented premises and personal Injury.

3) An event sponsoers must be prepared to provide the Chamber/NLTRA with copies of all
approved event permits and licenses, as may be required by local or state agencies, upon
the request of the Chamber/NLTRA.

4) Grantee agrees to no less than two meetings with the NLTRA Special Events and
Chamber staff to review:
a) The event plan and provide suggestions and recommendations.
b) Event Final Report to ensure all information requested at the initial meeting is
available and covered in the final report. Once the Event Final Report is
approved by staff, grant funds will be released,

5) Accountability and Documentation of the Event Final Report:

All grant recipients must file a complete Event Final Report to the office of the North Lake
Tahoe Chamber of Commerce prior to the release of grant funds fo reimburse appropriate
expenses. {See Section B for Final Event Report requirements).

3-39



SECTION A:

Special Event Application:

"The following information must be provided to complete the application process. To ensure your application is qualifies
for the review process, please carefuily profile your proposal against the chigibility criteria as listed in the Community
Marketing Program Grant Funding Criteria, as well as the Special Event Criteria listed below,

1. The event must be held in the North Lake Tahoe area (E. Placer County), as further defined by the service area of the
requesting organization,

2. The timing of the event is encouraged to follow the principle as set forth in the North Lake Tahoe Tourism and
Community Investment Master Plan.
»  Tnan effort to reduce pressure on tourist, community resources and infrastructure during periods of peak
visitation, the NLTRA should help develop and promote special events during “strike zone” areas of
opportunity.

3. Rvents that generate local and regional exposure and public relations value are encouraged.

Date Submitted:

1. Bvent Date ‘ Event Name:

2. Grant Amount Requested

3. Name of Applicant Organization:

4. Contact Nane

Mailing Address City/State Zip:
Telephone: Email:

Website:

5. When was organization founded? Is organization non-profit?

6. Purpose/Mission of organization

340




7. Tax iD Number:

8. What is your organization’s atnual net revenus

3. Narrative description and purpose of the event?

10. How is your special event consistent with your organization’s mission or purpose?

11. How does your event enhance visitation to the are or improve the visitor experience?

3-41



{2. Submit (attach) complete proposed budgat of fhc%ev it

13, If not provided in event budget, please provide (aitac] complets ,'-érkeiihg and p@'n}nétional plan.

EXAMPLE:

Type $Sp¢'nrt‘—,‘m‘j{iés@fih'&Wﬁat,fyg‘li'ai’e‘,d‘t)_i:i:}gw‘—‘ij.tl_l_'galgh. category below
Newspapeir/Magazine $_§_0_Q__or$0 o 1 o R
Infernet/Website $ _,59_()%_ 01 '$0‘: free hstmgmcalendar of evénts

Radio $ 500 o

TV

Rack Cards

Brochure

Direct Mail

Printed Program

Other

14, Grant Amount Requested: §

15, Percentage of total event budget requested Y

16. Sources of other funding to support the special event budget, including proposed sponsors.

17. Description of how the success of your event will be measured:

Signature Date

Print Name and Title

3-42



SECTION B:

Final Eiéiit?liépﬁi‘t;

be ;e'.iéaéé;d., Requirgd ref)ort m_ust,bé submitted to
' ddi'tiona[ 'do'cumentatioa and materia]s as

The following information must be submlttcd hefom gra funds
the office of the North Lake Tahoe Chamber of Comn‘
necessary, : ‘
Although each event is unique, many measurcmcms of sucoess:ate standard Y0ur spac:f c measurementa of SUCCESS
will be clearly defined at your initial meeting with NLTRA]Chamber Staff

Please attach your Profit & Loss report, itemized exnfmdltures and 1eeemts for rclmbursable items
Your Final Event Report should also inchude the following informatioti;

MARKETING

Did you include your event on www.GoTahoeNorth.com calendar? Yes ' No  (Please circle)
BPid you use NLT Chamber e-mail blast service? Yes No

Bid you use “Cool-Deals™” {o generate evcntflodging packages? Yes No

Please provide samples of all marketing materials.

RESULTS

Did your event generate overnight lodging tax? Yes No

If s0, approximately how many room nights did your event generate in East Placer County?

How did you measure this information?

FHow many unique visitors did your website produce?

Other measurements (online surveys, YouTube hits, efc),

Public Relations results?

Total attendees:

Participants

Spectators

If applicable, how does this compare to previous years attendance?

What would you do differently to make this event even more successful in the future?

3-Y2



| nsssmssommu
L CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

2011-12 Community Marketing Grant Program
for Business Association Partners
Grant Funding Criteria and Application Form

Introduction:

The North Lake Tahoe Resort Association, in collaboration with the North Lake Tahoe Chamber of
Commerce, has established the Community Marketing Grant Program for Business Association
Partners(BAP). The purpose of this program is to provide community based business organizations
specifically identified in the NLTRA/Placer County contract marketing and promotional support for
projects and programs targeted at visitors to the region that generaie local and regional business
revenue; provide local and regional media exposure, and opportunities for public relations.

All Community Marketing Grant Program applications are reviewed by Chamber staff, then
reviewed by the Chamber of Commerce Advisory Committee (CAC) during a regular public
meeting. If approved by the CAC, the grant applications are then considered by the Board of
Directors of the North Lake Tahoe Resort Association, typically as a Consent Calendar item on a
regular Board agenda.

Grant Eligible Organizations

A specific amount of total funding is set aside for organizations annually. These organizations are:
the North Tahoe Business Association, West Shore Association, Squaw Valley Business
Association, Tahoe City Downtown Association, and the Village at Northstar Association.

Grant Program Deadlines:
Business Association Program (BAP) grant deadlines apply within the fiscal year (July I - June 30).

Deadline: Open

344



Grant Program Eligibility Criteria: ' B
BAP grants are desigried to prewde marketmg and promotional support mcludmg, but not hmItcd
to, the design, development and distribution of marketing collateral, promotional efforts, and/or
advertising efforts which help génerate local and regional business revenue (including Sales Tax
and Transient Occupancy Tax) and promote the commercial /geographic area(s) of the requesting
organization/entity.

Grant Eligible Grant Ineligible
* Geographic area advertising * Capital Investments
(TV, radio, print, Internet) » Salaries
* Production and printing of promotional * Operational Overhead
materials (brochures, flyers, posters, etc.) *» Vehicle expenses (Fuel, etc.)
* Production and printing of signage used » Food, Beverage, Entertainment &
to direct and/or inform visitors. ‘ Transportation
* Marketing and promotion of each specific region + Supplies, Equipment, Telephone,
for special events and programs of the designated Security, Clean-up, Facility Rental

Business Associalion

Dollar amounts to be awarded:
A specific amount of total funding is set aside for these organizations each year.

Grant Program Recipient Obligations:

Use of the North Lake Tahoe Resort Association/ North Lake Tahoe Chamber of Commerce logo,
indicating sponsorship and/or support on printed promotional materials, including brochures, flyers,
advertising, and on signage as appropriate.

Accountability and Documentation of Return on Investment (ROT) presentation to the Chamber
Advisory Committee is required before any other grants can be considered..

Applications for the Community Marketing Program and any invoices for payment, based on
an approved application, shall be sent to the Chamber as follows:

Kym Fabel, Manager

North Lake Tahoe Chamber of Commerce
PO Box 884

100 North Lake Blvd.

Tahoe City, CA 96145

Ph: 530-581-8764 Fax: 530-581-7686
Kym(@PureTahoeNorth.com

3-45



SECTION A:
Business Association Marketing Grant

Application form

Date Submifted:

1. Event Date Event Namei

2. Grant Amount Requested

3. Name of Applicant Organization:

4, Contact Name

Mailing Address City/State Zip:
Telephone: " | Email:

Website:

5. When was organization founded? Is organization non-profit?

6. Purpose/Mission of organization

7. Tax 1D Number:

8. What is your organization’s annual net revenues (less expenses).

9. Narrative description and purpose of the grant funding?

10. How is your grant request consistent with your organization’s mission or purpose?

34



12. If not provided in budget, pleaée‘-'pf_olﬁidﬁ (atrach) 'édihpléte;r-iié'rjkétiné and promotional plan.

EXAMPLE:
Type

Newspaper/Magazine

Internet/Website § 500 or$0: froe listing in calendar of events

Radio 3 500

TV

Rack Cards

Brochure

Direct Mail

Printed Program

Other

13. Grant Amount Requested: §

14, Percentage of total budget requested Y%

15. Sources of other funding to support the business association budget.

16. Description of how the success of your grant will be measured:

Signature

Print Name and Title

Date




SECTION B: o
Required Accountability and ROT Documentation Report:

The following information must be Slibmlﬁ(id and presented to the Chamber Advisory Committee
before the next granting cycle begins. Required reports must be submitted to the office of the North
Lake Tahoe Chamber of Commerce. Please attach additional documentation and materials, as
necessary. - '

1. Complete breakdown of all advertising and media campaigns executed, including ad cost, size
frequency, circulation, distribution and gross impressions, if available.

2. Presentation/examples of collateral, advertisement sample(s), and printed materials produced.

3. Summary of public relations etforts and results.

4, Website/ Internet Statistics (e.g. online surveys, Intemet postings, YouTube hits, etc.)

3-98



If the grant was for a specnal event ple’xse also pr vide‘the- followmg report

A. Event attendance statistics and results of partlclpant surv : ys 1f taken :

B. Copies/examples of press releases and media coverage.

C. Summary information on:

* Post Event Summary:

*» Your experience in raising funds for this event from other sources.

- Final actual expenditures and revenue statement.

15

3-49



AttachmentE

Performance Measurement Documént_ o

Leisure Advertising

Advertising/Promotions/Media
Leisure Coop Budget Amount

Direct Paid Media Dollars

Added Value Media

Coop Programs Investment (NLT Coop)
Gross Media Impressions

Response/lnquires
Total paid clicks
Average cost per click
Average click thru rate
Total Leads
Number of brochure / planper requests
Total email database
Database email open rate
Database email click thru rate
Total direct mail database
Ad recall/awareness
Cost per aware visitor
Total publicaticn leads
Database email open rate
Database email click thru rate

GTN Online Activity
Total Unique Visitors
Cost per Visitor
Percent of Direct/Bookmarked Visitors
Time Spent on Consumer Website
Number of Repeat Visitors
Number of Cool Deals Posted
Cool Deals Pageviews
Number of lLodging Referrals
Lodging Referrals % of Total
Number of Events Posted
Search Engine Referrals
Organic Search Engine Resulls
Avg. Amount of #1 Positions
Avg. Amout of 1st Page Positions
Avg. Amount of 2nd Page Positions

GyrintPercd " Prior Perod

“OctMarch 1112 Oct:March 10/11

QOct - March 1112 OQOct - March 10/%1

Oct-March 1112 Oct. - March 10/11

3-50



GTN Geographic Breakdown :
Top five cities and percent of totai v:sntors

- Total California visits

Visits by top CA cities (attached graph)_ -

Northern CA visitors

Northern CA percent of total visitors

Southern CA visitors

Southern CA percent of {otal visitors
Outside CA visitors

Percent of fotal visitors

Media/Public Relations
Total Public Relations Spend
Media Trade Shows
Number of trade shows attended
Number of appointments
Number of qualified media in attendance
Media Missions
Number of media missions
Number of coop partners
Number of media contacts

Media Familiarization Tours (FANs)
Number of FAMs
Number of gualified media participating
Number of publications represented
Press Releases
Number of press releases issued
Number of press releases downloaded from
website
Number of Media Inquiries
Number of Media Interviews
Placements
Total number of placements
Regional vs. National
Domestic vs. International
Percent of LA
Percent of Northern CA
Number of Impressions
Advertising Equivalency
% of Positive Media Placement
% of Media Coverage Reaching Target Audience

7 Oct March 11]12 Oct March 10111

Oct. - March 11112 Oct. - March 1012

i

3-5)



% of Media Coverage Including Website Address S

L. 1

Bookings
Online Ticket Sales

"Oct,.' Marchﬁmz Oct. - March 10/11

Tickets sold online

Ticket revenue

Ticket commission

Event Marketing

Total Number of events supported

Total Attendance by Event Supported i

Events Supported

50th Anniv. Winter Olympic Heritage Cele. -

L.ake Tahoe Music Festival

L.ake Tahoe Marathon

Big Blue Adventure Race

L earn to Ski & Board

Snowfest

Tahoe City Downtown Assoc. Wine Walk

Fabulous Fall Celebration

PaddlePalooza

Autumn Food and Wine

Total Event Spend

Total Ticket Sales

Total Revenues

Total Attendance

Local %

Northern CA %

Destination %

Total Vendor Particpation

Total Web Visits

Total Web Impressions

Total Web Click Thrus

Public Relations Advertising Equivalency

Conference/Group Sales
Conference Coop Budget Amount

Oct. - March 11/12 Oct, - March 10/11

Direct Paid Media Dollars

Added Value Media Dollars

Coop Programs investment (NLT Coop)

Partner Leveraged Dollars

Leads

Number of leads

Lead room nights

Web page visits
Booked Business

Number of bookings

Booked room nights

Booked attendence

2-52



Booked Room Revenue
Lost Business
Number of lost opportunities
Lost room nights
Lost attendence
Arrived Business
Number of bookings
Number of booked room nights
Number of booked attendees
Booked attendees spending
Personnel productivity metrics
Number of leads-sales person A
Number of bookings-sales person A
Number of booked room nights- sales person A

Travel Trade/Sales

Total Travel Trade Spend

Leisure Trade Shows
Number of trade shows attended
Number of Coop shows

Number of Sales Missions {call center trainings)
Domestic
international

Leisure Familiarization Tours (FAMs)

Number of Site inspections

Wholesale Product Placements
Domestic Brochure Placement
International Brochure Placement
Number of NLTRA Pages with Domestic
Suppliers
Number of NLTRA Pages with Internatinal
Suppliers
Number of Properties Featured on Domestic
Websites
Number of Properties Featured on International
Websites

1

e T2

Oct. - March 10111

Qct. - March 11/12

Oct. - March 1011

|

352



